AUBURN SCHOOL DEPARTMENT
AUBURN, MAINE
REPORT OF REGULAR SESSION MEETING OF THE AUBURN SCHOOL COMMITTEE

Auburn Hall May 16, 2007
Members Present: Mr. Ray Berube Dr. Susan Gaylord

Mr. David Das Mrs. Bonnie Hayes

Mr. Greg Desgrosseilliers Mr. Ross Leavitt

Mr. Lane Feldman Mrs. Tara Paradie

Others Present: Barbara Eretzian, Superintendent; Tom Morrill, Assistant Superintendent; Jude
Cyr, Business Manager; Victoria Tanous and Tanya Gagne, Student Representatives.

l. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

A. Introductions

Mr. Das called the meeting to order at 7:02 P.M. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. Committee
members introduced themselves and stated which ward they represent.

B. Communications

Mr. Das noted that there were several communications regarding budget reductions; however, he
recommended waiting until the section on the budget to present these communication items.

C. Recognition

Mrs. Eretzian reported that Mr. Davis will join the School Committee and be recognized at the
June meeting,.

Mr. Das recognized Victoria Tanous for her service on the School Committee. He presented her
with a card and scholarship.

. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approval of Agenda
B. Approval of Minutes -May 2, 2007.
Mr. Das noted that there is an addendum to tonight’s meeting agenda because of the budget cuts.
It was moved by Mr. Leavitt seconded by Dr. Gaylord and voted to approve the Consent Agenda for

tonight’s meeting including the addendum.

II1. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Laurier P. Morrisette provided a report to the Auburn School Committee regarding his feelings
about the education he received in Auburn.

Cameron Sutton expressed her appreciation for the Land Lab noting that she feels Auburn students
and citizens are fortunate to have such a facility to provide hands-on science learning experiences.

v STUDENT INFORMATION

Ms. Tanous reported that seniors have seven days of school left. She noted that the girls football
game will be held tomorrow night, seniors will be going on a field trip and will be raising money for

Page 1 of 7



their class, and yesterday the National Honor Society induction was held. She reported that Ms.
Gagne was inducted into the National Honor Society.

Ms. Gagne reported that all juniors would be going to a college fair tomorrow. She also reported
that track teams are doing well.

V. SUPERINTENDENT REPORT

A. Planning and Development
1. Video Surveillance Installation at Auburn Middle School

Jude Cyr, Business Manager, presented information about the installation of video surveillance
equipment at Auburn Middle School. Mr. Cyr stated that this is a continuation of the project at
the high school and is part of the homeland security grant. The high school is being monitored
weekdays and weeknights to look at the safety and security of the school. As part of the grant, the
School Committee had agreed that they would look at extending this program into the middle
school. He notified the Committee that Maine Wave, Inc. would be the installer and supplier for
this project. Mr. Cyr also provided a map of the camera locations noting that these are all
compatible with what is being used at the high school.

Mrs. Eretzian noted that the funds for this project come from the 2005/06 Bond money.

Mr. Cyr reported that the cost for the middle school is lower than the costs at the high school
because we can now feed into the main unit at the high school. He noted that we also had some
cameras installed at the new elementary school and will look into connecting these units as well.

It was moved by Mrs. Hayes seconded by Mr. Leavitt and voted to approve installation of video
surveillance equipment at Auburn Middle School at the cost of $36,961.15.

2. Budget Discussion

The School Committee discussed the proposed budget reductions based on City Council
recommendations. Mr. Cyr provided two handouts noting that the budget document is a recap of
what was discussed on Monday with respect to budget reductions. He noted that the School
Department budget is now at 3.3%. The revenue source shows the reduction in mil rate would be
minus 11 cents per thousand. He also provided information regarding Essential Programs and
Services (EPS), noting that based on the decisions made on Monday night we are now $802,801.58
below EPS.

Mr. Das noted that EPS is the State’s measure of what is required to meet the basic needs in the
system. He stated that the reductions bring the budget to the 3.3% spending cap. Mr. Das stated
that this reduction brings the local tax impact to an decrease of 1.18%.

Mrs. Eretzian asked Mr. Berube if he knew if there was any indication of additions to the total City
valuation based on growth in the community.

Mr. Berube stated that he had no further information with respect to the City valuation, but he was
informed that if a person had a tax increase last year they should also expect one this year.

It was moved by Mrs. Hayes seconded by Mr. Leavitt and voted to approve the new budget in the
amount of $33,726,785.

Mr. Das called for public comment with respect to the budget.

Page 2 of 7



Andrew Harris, Executive Director of LA Arts, stated that he was here in response to the article in
the Sun Journal reporting the cut regarding LA Arts. Mr. Harris stated that he did not feel it was
appropriate to drop out of a 30-year partnership with LA Arts without prior discussion with this
organization. He stated that if you looked at the LA Arts website you will see that we are very
proud of the art education we provide for the students in Auburn and Lewiston. Mr. Harris also
noted that this is one of the few long standing partnerships with Lewiston, noting that the budget
cuts that you propose do not impact you or your students alone. He stated that LA Arts employs
one staff member to service the schools in Lewiston and Auburn and amongst the programs offered
for students, LA Arts also provides professional development for school staff to support ongoing
work in the classroom. He provided a copy of the programs offered. Mr. Harris stated that it seems
that to dismantle a nationally recognized arts program which has been in development for over two
decades and costs a third of what it provides is a recommendation that is not well thought out. He
requested that the School Committee reconsider their decision. He also provided a list of
comments from citizens, investors, and teachers regarding the work in the schools.

John Oxman stated that it is ironic that we speak of installing security cameras and cutting funding
to LA Arts on the same evening. He noted that his daughter worked for several years at LA Arts and
it was the work from LA Arts in the schools and her work at LA Arts that inspired her to go on to
get her PhD. He stated that he was disappointed by the process as well as the reduction and noted
that he feels this should be put back in the budget because this program is providing plenty of bang

for the buck. Mr. Oxman asked the School Committee members to please reconsider and reinstate.

Dennis Grafflin stated that he is a member of the Lewiston School Committee, but he is not
speaking for them tonight. He noted that he is speaking as an officer of LA Arts. Mr. Grafflin
stated that when people are talking about collaboration, it is strange that the Auburn School
Department is seeking to destroy a long-standing collaboration with the Lewiston School
Department.

Nerys Bayley stated that she has a son at East Auburn School and she appreciated that LA Arts was a
program that provided enrichment in the schools. She noted that it is amazing that this multiplier
effect also allows us to write grants. She requested that the School Committee members reconsider
this decision, noting that it is a shame to see this program cut.

Tammie Grieshaber stated that she is the Volunteer Director of the LA Arts Gallery 5, and a former
employee of the Auburn School Department. Ms. Grieshaber stated that she is the mother of a
student that needed the arts to make it through school. She noted that she remembers Ms. Gagne
working with one of the people from LA Arts recently on a book. Ms. Grieshaber stated that the
things that happen in our schools will still happen in Lewiston, but not in Auburn if you cut the
money from LA Arts. She noted that the Auburn Grants Department often needs a partner for
grants and LA Arts is one of those partners. Ms. Grieshaber stated that she had sent the School
Committee an e-mail with her suggestions for alternative cuts to the budget and she would be
willing to send more suggestions if necessary. She stated that she knows how difficult this is;
however when you have money that you can leverage the way you do this money it doesn’t make
sense to get rid of it.

Mrs. Hayes stated she received a phone call last night regarding the guidance secretary noting that
they would like to see this position put back in the budget.

Mr. Das stated that he also received the same communication.

Mrs. Paradie stated that as a member of the committee she was uncomfortable with the LA Arts cut
and would like to revisit this item and bring LA Arts funding back in the budget.

Page 3 of 7



Mr. Das noted that he feels the same about LA Arts that he does about the Land Lab and he shares
Ms. Paradie’s feelings.

Mrs. Hayes stated that all of the cuts are difficult. She asked if we have grants on-going that would
stop at this point if we did not reinstate this funding to LA Arts.

Mr. Cyr responded that what Mrs. Grieshaber has stated is factual and we have used LA Arts to gain
leverage and get grant awards.

Mrs. Eretzian stated that the partnership with Lewiston is very important to get grants as well.
Mrs. Hayes asked Mr. Berube if LA Arts receives funding from the City and is it more than $18,000.

Mr. Berube responded that the City does provide funds to LA Arts. Mr. Berube asked about line

item 4500, noting that there was a cut. He wanted to know what Sundry money is used for.
Mr. Das responded that the money in the Sundry is for:

* Consulting services for one year for Mrs. Eretzian.
* A Special Ed per diem consultant was taken out.
* Contract negotiation with administrators representing a 3% increase in salary.

Mr. Leavitt asked if there had been any investigation into savings if there were some consolidation of

staff in this building.
Mr. Cyr stated that we have been looking at this and we do not have final numbers yet.
Mrs. Hayes asked what is the School Department share of this expense.

Mrs. Eretzian responded that the School Department share is 38% of the building costs, which is
higher than what we paid at Chamberlain.

Mr. Das noted that we were concerned about the expenses of moving to this building being higher
than those at the Chamberlain building and this has proven to be true.

Mrs. Hayes stated that we have unencumbered expenses in our self-supporting lunch program.

Mr. Cyr stated that if we look at taking this money and moving it somewhere else, at some point the
lunch program will need to replace equipment and the funds will not be there.

Mrs. Hayes stated that she realizes the importance of LA Arts and now she feels that we can fund it
for one year out of the food service account and still leave them enough money to do what they
need.

Mrs. Eretzian stated that taking it from Other Salaries would be a better way to do this. Mrs.
Eretzian stated that if we were to do this over it would be done differently. She noted that the
School Committee had not received a presentation from LA Arts and have had to do a lot of
learning to develop this budget. She stated that she would recommend that the Committee look to
make the adjustment with the Other Salaries account and use next year to work with LA Arts to
learn more about their program. She noted that she does believe that our students learn a great deal
from this program and she is proud to say that Auburn has not had to make cuts in the arts.

Page 4 of 7



Dr. Gaylord stated that we all value the arts, noting that it was simply that we needed to find a way
to meet a budget that is a very small amount of money to meet the program needs for our children.
She noted that she would hope that as a community we would be able to come together to let our
Councilors know that we value education enough to pay a higher tax rate to provide it.

Mrs. Paradie stated that LA Arts is important to the community and to the School as a whole and it
is important to maintain that.

Mr. Das asked if there was any sentiment to restore the Guidance Secretary position at Edward
Little.

Mrs. Eretzian stated that the position is currently vacant and has been since November; however
they have had some substitute help. She noted that the Guidance Office had five clerical staff prior

to this reduction.

It was moved by Mrs. Hayes seconded by Mr. Leavitt and voted to approve a budget of
$33,726,785 for fiscal year 07-08.

It was moved by Mrs. Hayes seconded by Mr. Paradie and voted 6 to 1 to authorize funding for LA
Arts in the amount of $18,000 to be taken from the Other Salaries account, Lane Feldman was
opposed.

Mrs. Hayes stated that she did recommend cutting the $18,000 to LA Arts, but noted that she did
not make this recommendation with the purpose of cutting arts from the schools. She explained
that the recommendation was because lives were at stake and these were difficult cuts to make.

3. Elimination of Positions

The Superintendent recommended the elimination of the following positions for the 2007-08 school
year:

Physical Education Teacher — Edward Little High School

Math Teacher — Edward Little High School

Science Teacher — Edward Little High School

Gifted & Talented Curriculum Assessment Consulting Teacher — Edward Little
High School

e. Secretary — Edward Little High School

f. .5 FTE Elementary Reading Teacher — East Auburn Community School

g. Reading Specialist Teacher (Effective October 1, 2007) — System

It was moved by Mr. Feldman seconded by Dr. Gaylord and voted to approve the elimination of the
above listed positions.

o T

4. Elimination of Contract

The Superintendent recommended the elimination of the following teacher contract for the 2007-
08 school year as a result of the elimination of that position:

a. Eric Palleschi
It was moved by Mr. Feldman seconded by Dr. Gaylord and voted to approve the elimination of the
above listed contract.
5. Creation of Positions

The Superintendent recommended the creation of the following teaching positions for the 2007-
2008 school year:

Page5 of 7



a. ELL Teacher — Park Avenue School
b. Assistant Director - Office of Learning and Teaching

It was moved by Mrs. Hayes seconded by Mr. Leavitt and voted to approve the creation of the
above listed positions.

6. Employment Nominations
The Superintendent recommended the following Certificated Employment Nomination:
a. Shelly Mogul, Assistant Director — Office of Learning and Teaching

It was moved by Mr. Leavitt seconded by Mrs. Paradie and voted to approve the above listed
employment nomination.

B. Business
1. Finance Report — April 2007

Mr. Cyr noted that we are at 83% of our budget and we are still solid. He reviewed the various
accounts, highlighting areas of interest or concern noting that the one piece of this budget that we
have been monitoring since November is the Maine Care reimbursement. Mr. Cyr informed the
members that one of the Directors of Special Education brought concerns to the Department of
Education regarding the hardships being experienced due to the new reimbursement formula. The
Commissioner, as a result of this information, will be recommending reimbursement at the old rate
retroactively and the current formula will be reviewed. He noted that our understanding from the
Commissioner is that reimbursement will be processed within two weeks from receiving
documentation.

Mr. Cyr noted that we have some funds set aside in a Worker’s Compensation interest bearing
account and we do keep the interest in this particular account. He noted that in other accounts
that bear interest, the interest must go to the City and this is reflected on the City’s general ledger
under interest income.

Mrs. Hayes noted that the consolidation of school districts could impact the City accounts.
Mr. Desgrosseilliers asked for clarification on the fund 50 accounts.

Mr. Cyr explained that there is always a timing issue at the high school in getting the reporting
because we have gone to a new banking system and some of the funds have not been transferred to
TD Banknorth at this time, but will be in the near future.

It was moved by Mr. Leavitt, seconded by Dr. Gaylord and voted unanimously to approve the
Finance Report for April 2007.

VI. INFORMATION / COMMITTEEREPORTS

* City Council Update

Mr. Berube reported that the City did not make it to the Land Lab during a recent tour. They were
supposed to go 60 miles and only went 30 miles. He reported that there was nothing new regarding
budget development.

Mrs. Eretzian noted that there had been a report on some issues at the high school regarding a
concern about a potential mold or mildew issue. She stated that Mr. Hunter and Mr. Miller are
prepared to give an update on that situation.

Mr. Hunter stated that they had received a complaint that some of the classrooms on the east side
of the building had an uncomfortable odor. He noted that Gary Bates, an environmental specialist,

Page 6 of 7



was contacted to provide some assistance in determining the causes of the problem. Mr. Hunter
explained that when moving bookshelf units it was determined that some of the fiberglass insulation
had become wet and was causing the odor. Mr. Bates informed the School Department that there
was no mold and the odor was not caused by anything that was harmful. The insulation was
removed, the floor was cleaned where the bookshelves had been, pipes were reinsulated with rubber
insulation, and the wall was reinsulated with new foil insulation. Mr. Hunter explained that we had
a driving rainstorm and the rain came in through the vents. Shortly after the rain we had some
warm weather, which heated the wet insulation causing the offensive odor combined with the fact
that the building is old and does not have great ventilation. Mr. Hunter explained that he has a
letter from Gary Bates with his recommendations noting that the treatment would have been the
same if we were dealing with visual mold.

Mr. Miller noted that the staff has been very flexible and patient with the process and at this point
there are no longer complaints regarding offensive odor.

Mrs. Eretzian stated that this is a very good example of why we need the overtime account. There
are projects that need to be done after school hours so that we don’t disrupt the students’ class day.

VIl. UPCOMING MEETINGS

* Public Budget Hearing — May 21st — Council Chambers Auburn Hall
* Regular School Committee Meeting — June 6th - 7:00 at Walton
* Retirement Recognition and At Risk Awards Presentation — June 13th - 6:00 at Park

Avenue
* Regular School Committee Meeting — June 20th - 7:00 at Auburn Hall

VI, RFUTURE AGENDA ITEMSDREQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Safety Issues

Half day Wednesdays
Religion in Schools — June 6"
The Land Lab — June 20*

Pre K Programs and Creation of Positions — June 6"

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSON

X. ADJOURNMENT

It was moved by Mr. Leavitt, seconded by Dr. Gaylord and voted unanimously to adjourn at 9:08
PM.

Attest, a true record,

Barbara Eretzian, Secretary
Superintendent of Schools

BJE/rmw

Page 7 of 7



